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"The Old Stone Church" is of a simple rectangular plan, 56' long 
by 54' wide, three bays wide with a south facing entrance, typical of 
the early churches. Centered on the south front is a spire, approxi­ 
mately 100' in total height, and projecting from the front to create a 
pavilion. All of the exterior walls are of stone. The lower portion 
of the center spire is finely faced and coursed red sandstone, with the 
upper part of the spire of a more rusticated finish. Except for well 
cut and coursed quoins at all corners, the outer walls are of random 
sized, uncut and uncoursed field stone.

The original main entrance doors are extant; however, in 1898 the 
original windows in the side bays of the south front were replaced by 
doors. The arch keystones carry the date of the change. There is some 
uncertainty as to whether these pointed arches are original (18th 
Century), but no physical or documentary evidence exists suggesting an 
earlier window listed.

The restoration included replacing the "art glass" windows with 
small pane clear glass windows patterned after the early photo. 
Interior partitions, later stairways in the side bays, and later pews 
and pulpit were removed and replaced with reproductions to recreate the 
plan referred to above. Church records refer to the pulpit as being 
"massive" towering above the heads of the congregation, and having been 
imported from Holland. The pulpit installed is a "barrel" or "wine­ 
glass" design with a tester (sounding board), patterned after the 
original in the North Church in Albany, New York and similar to the 
Sleepy Hollow Reformed Church.

High backed square shaped pews were installed to create the 
feeling of the original, although lower for practical reasons. Doors 
are installed on the "elders' benches" to the sides of the pulpit. The 
original balcony or loft, which was used by the slaves to attend 
services, and later served as the first Sunday School, is intact, with 
only minor work required to restore its original appearance.

On the Church property remains one of the very few privys in the 
area. Still functional, it is often a welcome "convenience" to those 
who spend a casual hour or so enjoying the tranquility and beauty of an 
early country church-yard. Truckers and other passers-by can often 
be seen on a pleasant day enjoying a placid lunch, or just taking a 
break from the routines of the day.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Functioning continuously as a religious facility for nearly 200 
years, the New North Reformed Low Dutch Church is an important example 
of early church architecture in Bergen County and was the center of 
social and educational activity for the entire area.

The Old Stone Church was established in 1784 as the New North 
Reformed Low Dutch Church, as a "spin-off" of the Reformed Church of 
Paramus (National Register - 1975), whose Pastor, the Rev. Benjamin 
Vanderlinde, donated the original two acres of land for the Church 
site. The original of the deed from Rev. Vanderlinde hangs in the 
Church's lounge.

Local legend has held that a smaller structure was constructed 
in the 1784-89 period, and that the present structure was erected in 
1814-19, since local records seem to indicate construction activity at 
that time. During the restoration of 1971-72, no evidence of an 
earlier structure, or of the present structure having been enlarged, 
was found. Since the keystone in the arch over the main entrance 
appears to be original and is dated 1789, this date is accepted as the 
date of construction of the present edifice.

The significance of the Old Stone Church is based upon its typical 
architecture for a vernacular country church of the late 18th to early 
19th Century. There remain within Bergen County about fifteen similar 
stone churches, of somewhat earlier or later vintage. The Old Stone 
Church retains much of its original appearance, and is one of the best 
preserved, in relatively unchanged configuration, of the extant group.

The social impact exerted by the Church on the lives of the 
early settlers of the area was substantial. The Dutch, and other 
settlers who were assimilated into the Dutch culture, were devout 
worshippers, and the Church functioned not only as the center of 
religious life, but also as the center of all social and educational 
life. All organized activities were structured around the early 
church. It became social hall, meeting house and school. As the 
earliest church, and for many years the only church, in the Saddle 
River Valley during the 18th and early 19th Centuries, the Old Stone 
Church was a central part of the life of the area.
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8. SIGNIFICANCE (continued)

The cemetery, still in active use, became the burial place of 
many of the early settlers, and weather-beaten grave stones of a few 
Revolutionary War veterans may still be seen.

The Church will celebrate its Bi-Centennial Anniversary in 1984.
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